

Meeting Announcement

Legislative Subcommittee

Thursday, September 15, 2022 12:00 p.m. – 1:30 p.m. *BY VIDEO CONFERENCE ONLY*

Please click the link below to join the webinar:

https://smcgov.zoom.us/j/93404696648

Or Dial-in:

US: +1(669)900-6833 Webinar ID: 934 0469 6648

Note: To arrange an accommodation under the Americans with Disabilities Act to participate in this public meeting, please call (650) 363-4220 at least 2 days before the meeting date.

**Please see instructions for written and spoken comments at the end of this agenda.

<u>AGENDA</u>

Call to Order / Roll Call / Declaration of a Quorum Present

Al Royse, Legislative Subcommittee Chairperson

Public Comment on Items NOT on the Agenda

Speakers are limited to two minutes. Roundtable members cannot discuss or take action on any matter raised under this item

CONSENT AGENDA

- 1. Action to Set Agenda and Approve Consent Agenda
- 2. Brown Act Remote Meetings Resolution Attachments: Memo and Resolution of Approval

AGENDA ITEMS

- 3. Introduction & Update from Prior Meeting, Al Royse, Legislative Subcommittee Chairperson
- 4. National Organization to Insure a Sound Controlled Environment (N.O.I.S.E.) Update Emily Tranter, Executive Director & National Coordinator
 - a. Update on FAA Reauthorization
 - b. Interesting new legislative proposals
 - c. Actions by other aviation Roundtables
 - d. Suggestions for action by SFO Airport/Community Roundtable

Working together for quieter skies

Legislative Subcommittee Meeting September 15, 2022 Page 2 of 2

5. Discussion of Legislative Subcommittee Priorities and Goals

Al Royse, Legislative Subcommittee Chairperson

6. Items of current interest

Al Royse, Legislative Subcommittee Chairperson

- a. Airport Noise Report: "Good Sleepers Have Lower Risk of Heart Disease and Stroke, French Study Finds" pg. 8
- 7. Adjourn

**Instructions for Public Comment during Videoconference Meeting

During videoconference of the Legislative subcommittee meeting, members of the public may address the Roundtable as follows:

Written Comments:

Written public comments may be emailed in advance of the meeting. Please read the following instructions carefully:

- 1. Your written comment should be emailed to <u>amontescardenas@smcgov.org</u>.
- 2. Your email should include the specific agenda item on which you are commenting.
- 3. Members of the public are limited to one comment per agenda item.
- 4. The length of the emailed comment should be commensurate with two minutes customarily allowed for verbal comments, which is approximately 250-300 words.
- 5. If your emailed comment is received by 12:00 pm on the day before the meeting, it will be provided to the Roundtable and made publicly available on the agenda website under the specific item to which comment pertains. The Roundtable will make every effort to read emails received after that time but cannot guarantee such emails will be read during the meeting, although such emails will still be included in the administrative record.

Spoken Comments:

Spoken public comments will be accepted during the meeting through Zoom. Please read the following instructions carefully:

- The Legislative subcommittee meeting may be accessed through Zoom online at <u>https://smcgov.zoom.us/i/93404696648</u>. The meeting ID: 934 0469 6648. The meeting may also be accessed via telephone by dialing in +1-669-900-6833, entering meeting ID: 934 0469 6648, then press #.
- You may download the Zoom client or connect to the meeting using the internet browser. If you are using your browser, make sure you are using current, up-to-date browser: Chrome 30+, Firefox 27+, Microsoft Edge 12+, Safari 7+. Certain functionality may be disabled in older browsers including Internet Explorer.
- 3. You will be asked to enter an email address and name. We request that you identify yourself by name as this will be visible online and will be used to notify you that it is your turn to speak.
- 4. When the Roundtable Chairperson calls for the item on which you wish you speak click on "raise-hand" icon. You will then be called on and unmuted to speak.
- 5. When called, please limit your remarks to the time limit allotted.



455 County Center, 2nd Floor Redwood City, CA 94063 T (650) 363-1853 F (650) 363-4849 www.sforoundtable.org



September 12, 2022

TO: Legislative Subcommittee & Interested Parties

FROM: Kathleen Wentworth, Roundtable Coordinator

SUBJECT: Resolution to make findings allowing continued remote meetings under Brown Act

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt a resolution finding that, as a result of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic state of emergency declared by Governor Newsom, meeting in-person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

BACKGROUND:

On June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, which rescinded his prior Executive Order N-29-20 and which waived, through September 30, 2021, certain provisions of the Brown Act relating to teleconferences/remote meetings. The Executive Order waived, among other things, the provisions of the Brown Act that otherwise required the physical presence of members of a local agency or other personnel in a particular location as a condition of participation or as a quorum for a public meeting. These waivers set forth in the Executive Order were to expire on October 1, 2021.

On September 16, 2021, the Governor signed Assembly Bill (AB) 361, a bill that codifies certain teleconference procedures that local agencies have adopted in response to the Governor's Brown Act-related Executive Orders. Specifically, AB 361 allows a local agency to continue to use teleconferencing under the same basic rules as provided in the Executive Orders under certain prescribed circumstances or when certain findings have been made and adopted by the local agency.

In order to continue to hold video and teleconference meetings, the membership will need to review and make findings every 30 days or thereafter that the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the members to meet safely in person and that state or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing. If the membership does continue to hold video and teleconference meetings, to meet the requirements of AB 361, the membership will need to adopt a resolution at every meeting.

The San Mateo County Board of Supervisors has adopted a resolution to continue remote meetings and encouraged other local agencies to make similar findings.

Working together for quieter skies

Resolution to make findings allowing continued remote meetings under Brown Act September 12, 2022 Page 2 of 2

The membership previously found, and it remains the case, that public meetings pose risks for COVID-19 spread for several reasons. These meetings may bring together people from throughout a geographic region, increasing the opportunity for COVID-19 transmission. Further, the open nature of public meetings makes it is difficult to enforce compliance with vaccination, physical distancing, masking, cough and sneeze etiquette, or other safety measures. Moreover, some of the safety measures used by private businesses to control these risks may be less effective for public agencies.

These factors continue to combine and directly impact the ability of members of the Roundtable to meet safely in person and to make in-person public meetings imminently risky to health and safety.

As noted above, under AB 361, local agency bodies were required to return to in-person meetings on October 1, 2021, unless they chose to continue with fully teleconferenced meetings and made the prescribed findings related to the existing state of emergency. At its meeting of August 3, 2022 the membership adopted a resolution wherein the membership found, among other things, that as a result of the continuing COVID-19 state of emergency, meeting in-person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.

The August 3, 2022 resolution also directed staff to bring an item to the membership prior to its next meeting to consider making the findings required by AB 361 in order to continue meeting under its provisions.

DISCUSSION:

We recommend that your Board or Commission avail itself of the provisions of AB 361 allowing continuation of online meetings by adopting findings to the effect that conducting inperson meetings would present an imminent risk to the health and safety of attendees. A resolution to that effect and directing staff to return each 30 days with the opportunity to renew such findings, is attached hereto.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

RESOLUTION NO. 22-02LEG

RESOLUTION FINDING THAT, AS A RESULT OF THE CONTINUING COVID-19 PANDEMIC STATE OF EMERGENCY DECLARED BY GOVERNOR NEWSOM, MEETING IN PERSON FOR MEETINGS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT/COMMUNITY ROUNDTABLE WOULD PRESENT IMMINENT RISKS TO THE HEALTH OR SAFETY OF ATTENDEES

RESOLVED, by the San Francisco Airport Community Roundtable that

WHEREAS, on March 4, 2020, the Governor proclaimed pursuant to his authority under the California Emergency Services Act, California Government Code section 8625, that a state of emergency exists with regard to a novel coronavirus (a disease now known as COVID-19); and

WHEREAS, on June 4, 2021, the Governor clarified that the "reopening" of California on June 15, 2021 did not include any change to the proclaimed state of emergency or the powers exercised thereunder, and as of the date of this Resolution, neither the Governor nor the Legislature have exercised their respective powers pursuant to California Government Code section 8629 to lift the state of emergency either by proclamation or by concurrent resolution in the state Legislature; and

WHEREAS, on March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20 that suspended the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law, Government Code section 54950 et seq. (the "Brown Act"), provided certain requirements were met and followed; and

WHEREAS, on September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed AB 361 that provides that a legislative body subject to the Brown Act may continue to meet without

fully complying with the teleconferencing rules in the Brown Act provided the legislative body determines that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees, and further requires that certain findings be made by the legislative body every thirty (30) days or when meeting next; and,

WHEREAS, the San Francisco International Airport/Community Roundtable has an important interest in protecting the health and safety of attendees, and welfare of those who participate in its meetings; and

WHEREAS, at its meeting August 3, 2022, the San Francisco Airport/Community Roundtable continued to adopted, by unanimous vote, a resolution wherein the membership found, *inter alia*, that as a result of the continuing COVID-19 state of emergency, meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees; and

WHEREAS, The San Francisco Airport/Community Roundtable has not met since its regular meeting on August 3, 2022; and

WHEREAS, the membership has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of emergency and finds that the state of emergency continues to impact the ability of members of the Roundtable to meet in person because there is a continuing threat of COVID-19 to the community, and because membership meetings have characteristics that give rise to risks to health and safety of meeting participants (such as the increased mixing associated with bringing people together from across the community); and

WHEREAS, in the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the emergency caused by the spread of COVID-19, the membership deems it necessary to

find that meeting in-person would present imminent risks to the health and safety of attendees, and thus intends to invoke the provisions of AB 361 related to teleconferencing;

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY DETERMINED AND ORDERED that

- 1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct.
- The Roundtable finds that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees.
- 3. Staff is directed to return no later than thirty (30) days after the adoption of this resolution or at their next regular meeting with an item for the Legislative Subcommittee Meeting of the Roundtable to consider making the findings required by AB 361 in order to continue meeting under its provisions.
- 4. Staff is directed to take such other necessary or appropriate actions to implement the intent and purposes of this resolution.

* * * * * *

Adopted at the Legislative Subcommittee meeting of ______.

Chairperson

Date



A weekly update on litigation, regulations, and technological developments

Volume 34, Number 29

September 2, 2022

Research

GOOD SLEEPERS HAVE LOWER RISK OF HEART DISEASE AND STROKE, FRENCH STUDY FINDS

[Following is a news release from the European Society of Cardiology on a study, "Healthy sleep score and incident cardiovascular diseases: the Paris Prospective Study III (PPS3)" presented Aug. 27 at the Society's 2022 Congress. Exposure to nighttime aircraft noise has been linked to cardiovascular disease.]

Nine in ten people do not get a good night's sleep, according to research presented at the European Society of Cardiology (ESC) 2022 Congress held in Barcelona. The study found that suboptimal sleep was associated with a higher likelihood of heart disease and stroke. The authors estimated that seven in ten of these cardiovascular conditions could be prevented if everyone was a good sleeper.

"The low prevalence of good sleepers was expected given our busy, 24/7 lives," said study author Dr. Aboubakari Nambiema of INSERM (the French National Institute of Health and Medical Research), Paris, France.

"The importance of sleep quality and quantity for heart health should be taught early in life when healthy behaviors become established. Minimizing night-time noise and stress at work can both help improve sleep."

Previous studies on sleep and heart disease have generally focused on one sleep habit, such as sleep duration or sleep apnea, where breathing stops and starts while sleeping. In addition, prior studies have often assessed sleep at baseline only.

The current study used a healthy sleep score combining five sleep habits. The researchers investigated the association between the baseline sleep score, and changes over time in the sleep score, and incident cardiovascular disease.

This study included 7,200 participants of the Paris Prospective Study III (PPP3), an observational community based prospective cohort. Men and women aged 50 to 75

years and free of cardiovascular disease were recruited in a preventive medical centre between 2008 and 2011. The average age was 59.7 years and 62% were men. Participants underwent a physical examination and completed questionnaires on lifestyle, personal and family medical history, and medical conditions.

Questionnaires were used to collect information on five sleep habits at baseline and two follow up visits. Each factor was given 1 point if optimal and 0 if not. A healthy sleep score ranging from 0 to 5 was calculated, with 0 or 1 considered poor and 5 considered optimal. Those with an optimal score reported sleeping 7 to 8 hours per night, never or rarely having insomnia, no frequent excessive daytime sleepiness, no sleep apnea, and an early chronotype (being a morning person). The

researchers checked for incident coronary heart disease and stroke every two years for a total of 10 years.

At baseline, 10% of participants had an optimal sleep score and 8% had a poor score. During a median follow up of eight years, 274 participants developed coronary heart disease or stroke.

The researchers analyzed the association between sleep scores and cardiovascular events after adjusting for age, sex, alcohol consumption, occupation, smoking, body mass index, physical activity, cholesterol level, diabetes, and family history of heart attack, stroke or sudden cardiac death.

They found that the risk of coronary heart disease and stroke decreased by 22% for every 1 point rise in the sleep score at baseline. More specifically, compared to those with a score of 0 or 1, participants with a score of 5 had a 75% lower risk of heart disease or stroke.

The researchers estimated the proportion of cardiovascular events that could be prevented with healthier sleep. They found that if all participants had an optimal sleep score, 72% of new cases of coronary heart disease and stroke might be avoided each year.

Over two follow ups, almost half of participants (48%) changed their sleep score: in 25% it decreased whereas in 23% it improved. When the researchers examined the association between the change in score and cardiovascular events, they found that a 1 point increment over time was associated with a 7% reduction in the risk of coronary heart disease or stroke.

Dr. Nambiema said: "Our study illustrates the potential for sleeping well to preserve heart health and suggests that improving sleep is linked with lower risks of coronary heart disease and stroke. We also found that the vast majority of people have sleep difficulties. Given that cardiovascular disease is the top cause of death worldwide, greater awareness is needed on the importance of good sleep for maintaining a

healthy heart."

Study Funding

The PPS3 was supported by grants from the National Research Agency (ANR), the Region IIe de France (Domaine d'Intérêt Majeur), the Research Foundation for Hypertension (RFHTA), the Research Institute in Public Health (IRESP), Horizon 2020 ESCAPE-NET, and FRM Team grant.

The European Society of Cardiology brings together health care professionals from more than 150 countries, working to advance cardiovascular medicine and help people lead longer, healthier lives. It is the world's largest gathering of cardiovascular professionals, disseminating ground-breaking science both onsite in Barcelona and online.